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About Us

VND 12,959 billion
( ~ 571.49 million USD)

SSI Asset Management Company Limited 
(SSIAM) is a 100%-owned subsidiary of 
SSI Securities Corporation (SSI), a leading 
securities company in Vietnam. SSIAM 
provides top-of-the-line fund and portfolio 
management services to help individuals and 
institutions preserve and grow their wealth. 
Our total assets under management have 

Total assets under management

reached VND 12,959 billion (USD 571.49 million 
equivalent) by the end of 2021. 

What makes SSIAM different is the outstanding 
performance of our long-term investment 
strategy, achieved through the harmonization 
of our investment strategy, analyst team, and 
risk management system.

 SSIAM | 5

Investment Philosophy 

SSIAM’s investment philosophy is to invest 
based on businesses’ core values. We look 
for companies with sustainable competitive 
advantages, reasonable valuation, long-term 
asset growth target, and an outstanding 
profit margin.
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2021 Highlights

VND 12,959 billion

Vietnam Long-Term 
Growth Investment Fund 
(VLGF)

Selected partner of 
insurance companies for 
unit-linked fund products.

94.3%

Total assets under management of SSIAM in 2021 
have reached

Successfully established 

Continues to be the

Total assets under management increased from 2020

Total assets under management

Revenue

Profit after tax

“Vietnam’s Best Fund 
Management Company for 
Private Retirement and 
Insurance Portfolios” 2021

“ETF Provider of the Year”    
2021

“Fund Management Company 
of the Year” 2021

“Best Fund Manager 
(Balanced Fund)” 2021

- Alpha Southeast Asia Magazine

– The Asset Magazine

– The Asset Magazine

– Alpha Southeast Asia Magazine
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We believe that 
people's growing 
interest in long-term 
financial planning 
is an important 
milestone in the 
process of building 
an efficient capital 
market.

Message from the CEO

Ha Noi, 19/04/2022

Dear Valued Investors, 

The year 2021 marks a year of many 
difficulties and challenges for the 
Vietnamese economy. The effects of 
Covid-19 on the economy were ever 
more tangible as provinces and cities 
applied social distancing measures 
during the third quarter and final 
months of 2021. However, thanks to 
the Government’s firm measures, and 
high vaccination rate, the pandemic 
was quickly controlled. This in turn 
created conditions for businesses 
to maintain and boost production 
activities. To return to a new normal, 
public investment continues to 
be deployed. GDP growth in 2021 
reached 2.58% - an impressive 
number in the context that the world 
economy was and is continuing to 
face many difficulties and obstacles 
due to the pandemic.

In the backdrop of the pandemic, 
the stock market still recorded 
many positive developments when 
VN-Index officially ended 2021 at 
1,498.28 points, an increase of nearly 
395 points (+35.7%) compared to the 
beginning of the year. In particular, 
VN-Index also had periods where 
it surpassed the psychological 
resistance of 1,500 points and 
established a new historical peak. 
The market has also continuously 
hit new records in terms of liquidity.  
Average trading volume per session 
reached over VND 21,593 billion and 
737.29 million shares, respectively, 
up 247.27% in value and 120.43% in 

average volume compared to 2020. 
The cash inflow from “F0” investors, 
in the context of low bank interest 
rates, contributed significantly to 
the outstanding growth in liquidity. 
In 2021 alone, domestic investors 
opened 1.53 million new securities 
trading accounts, equivalent to an 
increase of over 56% compared 
to 2020, and exceeding the total 
number of new accounts in the 4 years 
from 2017 to 2020 combined. The 
total number of domestic investor 
accounts has exceeded 4.2 million, 
equivalent to about 4.3% of the 
population. 2021 also saw a change 
in the operating policy framework 
when the revised Law on Securities 
took effect, along with Circulars 
98/2020/TT-BTC and 99/2020/TT-
BTC, to shape the fund management 
industry more clearly. 

We believe that people's growing 
interest in long-term financial 
planning is an important milestone 
in the process of building an efficient 
capital market. For the whole of 2021, 
listed companies have registered 
to offer shares with a value of more 
than VND 177 trillion, an increase 
of 2.1 times compared to 2020. 
Corporate bonds market recorded 
964 domestic issuances with total 
issuance value of VND 594 trillion, up 
35% over the same period. In order to 
meet investors’ needs in this exciting 
market, many new investment funds 
have been launched, in which SSIAM 
stands out when it successfully 
launched the Vietnam Long-Term 
Growth Investment Fund (VLGF) in 
2021.

Profit before 
tax reached

Increased

as compared to same 
quater last year

VND 71

453 %

billion
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During such a challenging year, the SSIAM team 
went above and beyond: We turned risks into 
opportunities and achieved the largest assets 
under management (AUM) growth ever with 
a total AUM of VND 12,959 billion the end of 
2021, nearly doubled compared to 2020 AUM 
and 2.35% higher than initially planned. The 
most significant contributor to asset growth 
was the SSIAM VNFIN LEAD ETF, which is the 
first sector ETF fund in Vietnam. The fund drew 
significant interest from foreign investors as its 
AUM achieved a growth rate of 215% in 2021. 
Additionally, the bond fund (SSIBF) continues 
to be trusted by domestic individual investors as 
an alternative to the traditional bank deposits, 
this resulted in an AUM growth of about 129%. 
Private and institutional portfolio management 
services have also achieved new milestones, 
with AUM growth of 537% and 71% respectively 
compared to the beginning of the year. We also 
continued to be the most desired fund manager 
for many insurance partners who continued to 
collaborate with us in building and managing ILP 
products (investment-linked insurance funds). 
With these achievements, 2021 is the second 
consecutive year that SSIAM has been honored 
by Alpha Southeast Asia magazine as "Best 
Fund Manager for Insurance, ILP Mandates & 
Private Retirement Schemes".

Thanks to the significant growth in size, 
SSIAM also achieved outstanding business 
performance. Our 2021 revenue reached over 
VND 145 billion and profit before tax reached 
VND 71 billion; both recorded strong growths, 
increasing 161% and 453% respectively over the 
same period last year.

Although the Covid-19 pandemic has greatly 
affected interactions with customers, as well 
as with regulators, SSIAM still successfully 
deployed a new fund in 2021, the Vietnam Long-
Term Growth Investment fund (VLGF). In just a 
short IPO period, we have raised nearly VND 150 
billion from over 500 investors for the fund, and 
VLGF officially started operating by December 
2021.

In addition to the financial metrics, it is 
impossible not to mention the big changes made 
by SSIAM in terms of corporate governance 
and enhancing customer experience. We have 
continuously implemented new accounting, 
fund management system, and fund certificate 
trading system in 2021. SSIAM invested in these 
systems with the goal of increasing investors/
partners convenience through management 
efficiency and service quality improvements. 

We expect to see many new changes in 
2022 when the whole country enters the 
post-Covid development phase; Vietnam's 
economy is forecasted to strongly recover 
from the low base of 2021 due to the following 
factors: (i) improved immunization rates; 
(ii) Government research into implementing 
policies and economic stimulus packages; (iii) 
continuous promotion of public investment; 
(iv) recovery from the industry - construction, 
services and the improvement of domestic 
consumption, investment and export,  and 
the strong wave of FDI movement from China; 
(v) the process of upgrading Vietnam's stock 
market to emerging market. However, market 
risks have also increased due to increasing 
inflationary pressures and major fluctuations 

from international geopolitical factors. We 
will continue researching new products 
and revising existing ones to adapt in 
the context of continuously changing 
investors’ needs, markets, and policies. 
Accordingly, we have some specific plans 
for 2022 as follows: scaling up current 
products and developing new products. 
Besides scale growth on existing products, 
SSIAM expects to officially introduce the 
Voluntary Pension Funds to complete our 
product range, as well as to meet market 
demand.

Expanding the network of new distribution 
partners: In addition to the main and 
traditional distribution channels from 
securities companies, SSIAM will continue 
to expand the cooperation scope with 
Fintech partners on online platforms. 
At the same time SSIAM will look for 
partners in new markets/countries to take 
advantage of the growth momentum of 
the Vietnamese stock market in the eyes of 
international investors.

I believe that, with the above specific 
action plans, we are always trying our best 
to be the most dependable partner to our 
customers, partners, and associates on 
path of SSIAM’s development.

On behalf of SSIAM, once again, I would 
like to thank our customers, partners, 
and investors for always trusting and 
accompanying us during the past year 
through many special events. We look 
forward to receiving your continued 
support. 

Sincerely,

Chief Executive Officer

Le Thi Le Hang

In 2022, we expect to see 
many new changs

2021 is the second consecutive year that SSIAM has been 
honored by Alpha Southeast Asia magazine as "Best Fund 
Manager for Insurance, ILP Mandates & Private Retirement 
Schemes''.
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Fund Management

Portfolio Management  

EXCHANGE TRADED FUNDS 
(ETF)

DISCRETIONARY MANAGED 
ACCOUNT

NON-DISCRETIONARY 
MANAGED ACCOUNT

BOND FUNDS

REAL ESTATE FUND PRIVATE EQUITY FUND PENSION FUND 
(LAUNCHING SOON) 

STRATEGY ADVISORY ASSET ALLOCATION ADVISORY

Investment Advisory 

EQUITY FUND 

Our Services

SSIAM’s team researched and developed products and services to suit the needs of different 
customer groups, including domestic and foreign institutional and individual customers. Below are 
the current and upcoming products provided by SSIAM: 

Overview

TRADING NAME Công ty TNHH Quản Lý Quỹ SSI

ENGLISH NAME SSI Asset Management Co., Ltd.

ESTABLISHMENT

LICENSES

19/UBCK-GP issued by The State Securities Commission on 
03/08/2007, Amendment license no. 12/GPĐC-UBCK by The State 
Securities Commission on 27/07/2011 and Amendment license no.  
38/GPĐC-UBCK The State Securities Commission on 26/12/2013.

HEADQUARTERS 5th floor, 1C Ngo Quyen, Ly Thai To Ward, Hoan Kiem District,Ha Noi, 
Viet Nam

TEL (+84) 24 39366321  FAX                  (+84) 24 39366337

WEBSITE https://ssi.com.vn/en/ssiam/products-and-services-ssiam

EMAIL ssiam@ssi.com.vn



| SSIAM Annual Report 202116 17About SSIAM |

Company History

2007

2009 2014

2010
August, 2007: SSI Asset 
Management Co, Ltd. was 
established

Launched SSI Vision Fund 
(SSIVF), Vietnam’s largest 
closed-end onshore fund with 
fund size VND1,700 billion at 
closing, equivalent to USD 100 
million, mainly investing in 
listed securities.

Launched DSCAP-SSIAM 
Vietnam Growth Investment 
Fund, jointly managed with 
Daiwa Corporate Investment 
Co., Ltd (formerly Daiwa SMBC 
Capital Co., Ltd) with fund size 
USD30 million at closing, mainly 
investing in private equities in 
Vietnam.

Launched SSI Sustainable 
Competitive Advantage Fund 
(SSI-SCA), an open-ended 
fund with VND111.9 billion 
charter capital, and SSIAM 
HNX30 ETF (Exchange-traded 
fund) with VND101 billion 
charter capital. 

Launched SSI Member 
Investment Fund, Vietnam’s 
first and only onshore license 
granted to invest in overseas 
property markets with fund 
size USD20 million at closing. 

2016 2019 2021

2015 2017 2020

Launched SSIAM UCITS – 
Vietnam Value Income and 
Growth Fund with USD15.1 
million fund size as of 
December 2016. 

Officially completed the fund 
raising phase of DAIWA-SSIAM 
Vietnam Growth Fund II LP 
with total committed capital 
of USD39.4 million from Asian 
investors.

Became the selected asset 
management company of the 
world’s leading life insurance 
companies entering the 
Vietnamese market. 

Launched Viet Nam Long Term-
Growth Fund (VGLF) in December 
2021.

Increased charter capital from 
VND 30 billion to VND 75 billion.

Launched DAIWA-SSIAM 
Vietnam Growth Fund II with 
USD32 million at first closing. 

Launched Andbanc 
Investments SIF - Vietnam 
Value and Income Portfolio 
fund with fund size of USD13.9 
million as of December 2015. 
This fund’s name now is SSIAM 
SIF – Vietnam 

Active Value Portfolio. 
Liquidated DSCAP-SSIAM 
Vietnam Growth Investment 
Fund with 38% internal rate of 
return before fee, exceeding 
hurdle rate of 10%. 

Launched SSI Bond Fund in 
August 2017 with VND68 
billion Charter Capital. 

Completed transfer of the 
replication index of SSIAM 
HNX30 ETF into VNX50 
index, changing the fund’s 
name to SSIAM VNX50 ETF, 
listed on the Ho Chi Minh City 
Stock Exchange under ticker 
FUESSV50 starting from 
October 2017.

Launched SSIAM VNFIN LEAD 
ETF (Exchange-traded fund) 
in February 2020

Launched SSIAM VN30 ETF 
(Exchange-traded fund) in 
June 2020

Launched Vietnam Growth 
Investment Fund (VGIF) in 
October 2020

Launched DAIWA-SSIAM 
Vietnam Growth Fund III in 
November 2020



19About SSIAM || SSIAM Annual Report 202118

Awards

 y “Best Fund House in Vietnam” in 2012, 2013, 2016

 y “CEO of the Year” in 2012, 2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 
2020

 y “CIO of the Year” in 2013, 2014, 2015 

 y “Fund Launch of the Year” in 2020

 y “Asset Management Company of the Year - 
Vietnam” in 2012, 2014, 2021 

 y “Fund Management Company of the Year 
(Onshore)” in 2015, 2016, 2017, 2018 

 y “ETF Provider of the Year” in 2021

 y “Best Vietnam onshore Fund House” in 2010

 y “Best Asset Management Company in Vietnam” in 
2015, 2016, 2017, 2018

 y “ETF Provider of the Year”  in 2021

 y “Best Overall Asset & Fund Manager” in 2020, 2021

 y “Best Fund Manager for Insurance, ILP Mandates & 
Private Retirement Schemes” in 2020, 2021

 y “Best Fund Manager (Balanced Fund)” in 2021
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Business Environment 2021

Financials

Industrial 

Real Estates

Material

42%

59%

34%

52%

than the previous 3 years combined), bringing 
the total number of securities trading accounts 
on the market to 4.3 million at an increasing 
rate, with more than 50% growth over the same 
period. However, capital market penetration is 
still only about 4% of the population of over 100 
million – despite recent exponential growth, 
we believe this upward trend will continue into 
2022 and beyond to support capital market 
growth and further facilitate more efficient 
capital allocation to the most productive sectors 
of the economy.

Overview

In 2021, the VN-Index ended the year with an 
impressive growth of 35.7%, and liquidity also 
exploded at a record level. The VN-Index closed 
on December 31 at 1,498.28, just below the 
psychological resistance of 1,500. From a sector 
allocation perspective, Financials (+42%), Real 
Estate (+34%), Industrial (+59%) and Materials 
(+52%), lead index performances in 2021. 
Liquidity was mainly driven by newly registered 
stock trading accounts. December was a record 
month with 226,000 new accounts opening. The 
total number of new accounts opened in 2021 
reached a record of 1.5 million (2 times higher 

Total net asset value 
of open-ended funds

Total net asset value
of ETFs

43.3

29.5

Open-ended Fund Operations

Domestic open-ended funds in 2021 continued to record growth in both asset 
size and number of participating investors. Total net asset value of open-
ended funds reached VND 43.3 trillion, up 25.7% compared to 2020. In the 
first 3 months of 2021, all equity and bond investment funds received new 
investment cash flow. However, we see a clear withdrawal trend from bond 
funds from April to October 2021, meanwhile equity funds maintained a stable 
amount of new investment. The withdrawal from bond funds by investors to 
invest in equity funds took place mostly in the third quarter and in October 
2021.

According to statistics from the State Securities Commission, total market 
capitalization of Vietnam's stock market is over 149% of GDP, with retail 
investors accounting for more than 80% of the trading value on the market. 
With such reality, the outlook of the fund management industry is bright, and 
much work still needs to be done to change the way most investors allocate 
investment assets. In the past year, customers with redundant cash in bank 
accounts continued to switch from savings accounts to bond funds. The 
potential of this customer group is enormous as total deposits of residents 
in the banking system account for 63% of GDP. We continue to see this as a 
target client group that may be the key driver for the growth of open-ended 
funds in Vietnam.

ETF Operations

In 2021, the total number of ETFs increased to 9 funds with a total net asset 
value of up to VND 29.5 trillion. The number of newly established ETFs 
increased significantly in the second half of 2021 with a total of 4 new ETFs 
being established in 2021. We expect this trend to continue in 2022 and the 
coming years. ETFs AUM saw the most rapid growth in the first 10 months of 
2021, with an increase of 97.3% (from VND 14.46 trillion to VND 28.53 trillion) 
according to data from the Vietnam Association of Securities Business.

In the past year, the stock market has continued to grow strongly, and 
attracted numerous investors. Foreign investors continued to participate in 
the Vietnamese market through ETFs which will then gradually attract more 
domestic investors to this product. This will help to increase the awareness 
of ETF in the market and increase competitiveness for Vietnamese fund 
management companies.

SSIAM will closely watch the ETF investment trend and aim to provide 
diversified investment choices for customers.

trillion

trillion

VND

VND
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As of 31/12/2021

12,959
billion VND

1

2

3

4

Mutal Funds

BONDS
SSI Bond Fund

(SSIBF)

EQUITY
Vietnam Long Term 

Growth Fund
(VLGF)

PENSION FUND

Member Funds Exchange Traded 
Funds

EQUITY
SSI Sustainable Competitive 

Advantage Fund
(SSI-SCA)

ETF
SSIAM VNFIN LEAD ETF

ETF
SSIAM VN30 ETF

ETF
SSIAM VNX50 ETF

PRIVATE EQUITY
Daiwa -SSIAM 

Vietnam Growth Fund lll 
L.P.

SSI MEMBER FUND
(SSIIMF)

VIETNAM GROWTH 
INVESTMNT FUND

(VGIF)

VIETNAM 
DIGITALIZATION FUND

(VDF)

PRIVATE EQUITY
Daiwa -SSIAM 

Vietnam Growth Fund ll 
L.P.

Fund Management Services

By the end of 2021, SSIAM managed more than 
VND 9,000 billion of assets through a variety 
of funds, including domestic and foreign 
investment funds, seeing an increase of 83% 
compared to 2020. During the first 18 months 
of the pandemic, before vaccines deployment, 
Zero-Covid policies were quickly enforced 
through closing borders and contact tracing 
to keep the domestic economy intact. These 
actions helped to maintain solid GDP growth in 
2020 and the first half of 2021. The Vietnamese 
economy was only hit hard in the third quarter 

of 2021, when there was a vaccine shortage 
and large numbers of cases in the southern 
economic centers. However, an accelerated 
vaccination campaign that reached 1 million 
doses/day in Q3 and Q4 of 2021 has eased the 
pressure on the public health system. This 
has allowed the economy to gradually reopen, 
starting in October 2021, with the tactical policy 
shift towards “living with Covid”. With this, 
the Vietnamese stock market recovered and 
increased sharply in Q4.2021.

Business Performance 2021

1 Investment Advisory 0.32%

2 Private Wealth Management 9.38%

3 Institutional Management 
Accounts

18.76%

4 Fund Management 71.54%

In 2021, SSIAM’s AUM is concentrated in our 
core businesses, including: fund management, 
portfolio management for institutional clients, 
and portfolio management for individuals. 
Total AUM broken down by services provided 
are as follows:

SSIAM successfully raised an open-ended fund, 
Vietnam Long term Growth Fund (VLGF). The 
VLGF invests in high-quality, industry-leading 
stocks and will benefit the most from Vietnam's 
economic growth in the next 10 years. By 
November 2021, the VLGF fund had successfully 
launched an initial public offering (IPO) with total 
AUM of nearly VND150 billion and more than 500 
investors in just 3 weeks.

In 2021, SSIAM continued to diversify and scale 
existing open-ended funds and ETFs. The net 
asset value of the bond fund (SSIBF) increased 
by 91.9% compared to 2020. This was achieved 
by structuring products to suit investors' 
short-term needs and expanding the scope 
of cooperation with banking partners. The 

first sector ETF fund in Vietnam, SSIAM VNFIN 
LEAD ETF, experienced an impressive growth of 
214.7% compared to its size at the end of 2020, 
reaching VND3,468 billion. Additionally, the 
fund yielded performance of 61.3%. In the past 
year, the strong participation of retail investors, 
now commonly known as "F0 investors", is a big 
milestone for the market. The total number of 
newly opened fund certificate trading accounts 
in 2021 is estimated at more than 269,000, 
which is higher than in all the previous years 
combined. At SSIAM, the number of new opened-
ended fund trading accounts exceeded 4,000 in 
2021, a record high compared to previous years. 
We believe this trend will continue in 2022 and 
that SSIAM can seize the opportunity to bring 
diversified product suites to investors.

List of Funds Managed by SSIAM
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Investment Performance of Funds

1. SSI Sustainable Competitive Advantage Fund (SSI-SCA)

 y Fund Type: Open-ended fund, established in Vietnam

 y Fund Size: VND685.99 billion as of 31/12/2021

 y Investment Objective: The Fund pursues long-term capital appreciation and regular return 
through investment in companies with sustainable competitive advantages and fixed income assets

 y The Fund continued to maintain a growth momentum that outperformed the market, increasing 
by 49.90% compared to the end of 2020.

 y Performance:

NAV/UNIT 
(VND)

PERFORMANCE (%)

   2014* 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 SINCE INCEPTION*

SSI-
SCA

32,195.68 -1.8% 17.7% 24.1% 38.2% -12.1% 3.9% 18.61% 49.90% 221.96%

VN-
INDEX

-9.8% 6.1% 14.8% 48.0% -9.3% 7.7% 14.87% 35.73% 147.66%

Updated as of 31/12/2021

NAV/UNIT 
(VND)

TERM

1M 2M 3M 4M 5M 6M SINCE INCEPTION*

SSIBF 12,947.13 0.51% 1.01% 1.54% 2.03% 2.56% 3.10% 29.47%

* Inception date:  30/08/2017

2. SSI Bond Fund (SSIBF)

 y Fund Type: Open-ended fund, established in Vietnam

 y Fund Size: VND1,373.31 billion as of 31/12/2021

 y Investment Objective: Maximizing investors’ return by taking full advantage of the 
opportunities to invest in fixed-income securities.

 y SSIBF has achieved impressive growth in AUM in 2021 thanks to the expansion of its distribution 
partner network. The reduction of deposit interest rates at banks is another advantage for the 
mobilization of assets under management of SSIBF in 2021.

 y Performance:

Updated as of 31/12/2021

*Inception date: 26/09/2014
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VNX50 ETF SSIAM VNX50

131.39%

11/2014
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11/2015 11/2016 11/2017 11/2018 11/2019 11/2020 12/2021

NAV/UNIT 
(VND)

PERFORMANCE (%)

1M 3M SINCE INCEPTION*

VLGF 9,992.03 -0.04% N/A -0.04%

VN-INDEX 1.54% N/A 1.54%

Updated as of 31/12/2021

*Inception date: 07/12/2021

3. Vietnam Long Term Growth Fund (VLGF)

 y Fund Type: Open-ended fund, established in Vietnam

 y Fund Size: VND150.02 billion as of 31/12/2021

 y Investment Objective: Long-term net asset growth and stable income generation for investors 
through investing in high-quality, industry-leading stocks and benefiting the most from Vietnam’s 
economic growth in the next 10 years.

 y Performance:

*Inception date: 17/11/2014
** The reference index is the HNX30 index, after 22/8/ 2017, 

the reference index is the VNX50 index.

4. SSIAM VNX50 ETF

 y Fund Type: Exchange-traded fund, established in Vietnam.

 y Fund Size: VND 312.38 billion  as of 31/12/2021

 y Investment Objective: To fully replicate the performance of VNX50 Index in all periods.

 y Investment Strategy: Full replication approach or partial replication approach of VNX50 index 
portfolio to minimize the tracking error.

 y Performance:

Updated as of 31/12/2021

NAV/UNIT 
(VND)

PERFORMANCE (%)

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 SINCE 
INCEPTION*

SSIAM 
VNX50 ETF 
(FUESSV50)

23,139.38 -13.1% -11.0% 3.6% 60.4% -7.1% 6.0% 22.95% 48.54% 131.39%

REFERENCE 
INDEX** -13.1% -12.2% 1.7% 71.4% -9.5% 5.9% 23.14% 49.53% 134.49%
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NAV/UNIT 
(VND)

PERFORMANCE (%)

2020 1M 3M 2021 SINCE INCEPTION*

ETF SSIAM 
VNFIN LEAD

21,870.83 35.59% 1.26% 10.27% 61.30% 118.71%

VNFIN LEAD 
INDEX

36.15% 1.19% 10.60% 63.15% 122.13%
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VNFINLEAD ETF SSIAM VNFINLEAD Updated as of 31/12/2021

*Inception date: 10/01/2020

5. SSIAM VNFIN LEAD ETF 

 y Fund Type: Exchange-traded fund, established in Vietnam

 y Fund Size: VND3,468.71 billion as of 31/12/2021

 y Investment Objective: To replicate the performance of VNFIN LEAD index in all periods.

 y Investment Strategy: The fund adopts a passive investment strategy with the goal of replicating 
VNFIN LEAD index’s performance in all periods. The fund does not actively seek higher return than the 
Tracking Index, nor does it use defensive measures when the stock market declines.

 y Performance:

NAV/UNIT 
(VND)

PERFORMANCE (%)

2020 1 THÁNG 3 THÁNG 2021 SINCE INCEPTION*

ETF SSIAM VN30 19,011.91 32.17% -0.15% 5.26% 43.85% 90.12%

VN30 INDEX  32.20% -0.12% 5.64% 43.42% 89.60%

*Inception date:  22/06/2020

6. SSIAM VN30 ETF

 y Fund Type: Exchange-traded fund, established in Vietnam

 y Fund Size: VND108.37 billion as of 31/12/2021

 y Investment Objective: To replicate the performance of VN30 Index in all periods.

 y Investment Strategy: The fund adopts a passive investment strategy with the goal of replicating 
the VN30 Index’s performance in all periods. The Fund does not actively seek a higher return than 
the Tracking Index, nordoes it use defensive measures when the stock market declines.

 y Performance:
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billion

Total AUM for institutional clients 
reached 

Assets under management for 
individual clients reached

2,431

1,215

Institutional Managed Accounts
In 2021, SSIAM continued to maintain close and stable cooperation 
with institutional customers. SSIAM not only cooperates with 
major insurance companies, but also develops relationships 
with other institutional clients with fiduciary needs. Currently, 
SSIAM is managing investment-linked products for many large 
international insurers in Vietnamese market. Total AUM for 
institutional clients reached VND 2,431 billion, up 71.78% over the 
same period last year.

Private Wealth Management 
Assets under management for individual clients reached VND 
1,215 billion by the end of 2021, a 6-fold increase compared to 
last year when individual customers withdrew capital due to fear 
of Covid-19 market risks in 2020. To help customers preserve 
capital, SSIAM has implemented investment strategy that 
combines fixed income and listed equity products. In addition, 
the strong participation of retail investors is the main driving 
force supporting the market in 2021 and marks a turning point for 
investors' risk appetite. All this together makes the stock market a 
safer and more popular investment channel.

Financial Highlights  

INDICATOR 2021 2020 % Change

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE 

Total Revenue (VND billion) 145.2 54.4 161.4%

Net revenue from main business activities 111.7 33.5 233.4%

Net revenue from financial activities 33.5 20.9 60.3%

Profit before tax (VND billion) 71.3 12.9 452.7%

Profit after tax (VND billion) 57.1 11.2 409.8%

CAPITAL STRUCTURE 

Shareholding Owner’s Equity (VND billion) 194.6 92.5 110.29%

PROFITABILITY RATIO 

Net profit margin 51.1% 33.3% 53.5%

 ROA 26.0% 11.1% 133.8%

 ROE 29.3% 12.1% 142.3%

VND

billion by the end of 2021

billionVND



| SSIAM Annual Report 202134 35SSIAM Performance Report 2021 |

Management review of
2021 business operations

ETF SSIAM VNFIN LEAD has 
a return of

SSI Sustainable Competitive 
Advantage (SSI-SCA) has a 
return of 

A total AUM of nearly

investors at home 
and abroad

VND

Within a short IPO period,
the VGLF Fund attracted more 
than 

61.30%

49.90% 150

500 

despite the complicated developments of the 
Covid-19 pandemic and strict social distancing 
measures in Q3. Total AUM have steadily 
increased with the company's success in setting 
up new investment funds (such as open-ended 
funds), increasing the size of existing funds, and 
acquiring a number of new portfolio mandates 
through implementing investment strategies 
in accordance with the risk appetite of each 
investor group.

Funds managed by SSIAM all yielded impressive 
returns in 2021, which further builds investor 
confidence. Under the management of an ETF 
pioneer in Vietnam, SSIAM VNFIN LEAD ETF 

As a reputable industry leader, SSIAM continues 
to demonstrate its outstanding business 
capability. SSIAM’s sustainable growth can be 
attributed to the establishment of new funds, 
existing funds’ size growth, and the expanding 
network of new private wealth clients. Thanks 
to these achievements, SSIAM has been 
honored by prestigious regional magazines 
such as The Asset, Alpha Southeast Asia as 
"Fund Management Company of 2021", and 
"Best Asset and Fund Management Company 
in Vietnam".

In 2021, SSIAM's business results and total 
assets under management increased steadily 

Total AUM reached
an increase of

compared to the
beginning of the year

Exceeding initial 
plans by 

94.3% 

2.35%

continues to grow exponentially in size, increasing by VND 214.7 billion to VND 
3,468 billion in 2021. This fund has a return of 61.30%. The ETF SSIAM VNX50 
has a return of 48.54%, the ETF SSIAM VN30 has a return of 43.85%, and SSI 
Sustainable Competitive Advantage (SSI-SCA) has a return of 49.90%. Most 
notable is that after the structuring of SSI Bond Fund (SSIBF), the fund is now 
more in line with the short-term needs of investors in the context of low interest 
rates; this has helped the fund's AUM to increase by 91.89% compared to the 
beginning of the year and made the fund well received by many retail investors. 
SSIAM will maintain cooperation with some key distribution partners for these 
open-ended funds in 2022.

Thanks to our reputation and positive track record, SSIAM seized the opportunity 
to establish Vietnam Long-Term Growth Investment Fund (VLGF). Within a short 
IPO period, the fund attracted more than 500 investors at home and abroad, with 
a total AUM of nearly VND150 billion.

Unit-linked funds that SSIAM manages for major insurance companies in the 
market were also effectively deployed. As a leading fund manager for insurance 
partners and clients, SSIAM was once again selected by Alpha Southeast 
Asia magazine as "Best Fund Manager for Insurance, ILP Mandates & Private 
Retirement Schemes” in 2021. 

Besides notable business performance indicators, 2021 also marks an important 
turning point when SSIAM officially put a new accounting system and fund 
certificate trading system into operation. With modern technology SSIAM can 
meet the company’s management and operational needs, as well as improve 
investor's experience in transactions. 

With the combined efforts of the entire company, SSIAM has overcome the 
general obstacles of the economy to achieve outstanding business growth and 
efficiency. By the end of 2021, total AUM reached VND 12,959 billion, an increase 
of 94.3% compared to the beginning of the year, exceeding initial plans by 2.35%. 
The total yearly revenue of 2021 reached over VND 145 billion and profit before 
tax reached VND 71 billion, both recording strong growth (increasing by 161% and 
453% respectively compared to 2020). For 2022, we believe that there are still 
many opportunities within this difficult economy. SSIAM will continue to lay the 
foundation for business activities and is ready to conquer new heights.

billion
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Business plans
and goals  2022

The medium and long-term goals of SSIAM 
are to effectively manage investors’ entrusted 
capital, and to grow total AUM in a sustainable 
way. To achieve that, SSIAM will always focus 
on improving investment capability, risk 
management and customer service quality. We 
aim to provide products that match investors’ 
needs, and simultaneously lead them to explore 
new products on the market. We will continue 
to communicate with investors to understand 
future investment needs and trends, as well 
as learn from experience in larger markets 
to develop appropriate product lines. The 
development and diversification of distribution 
channels is still something that we must focus 
on in order for our products to reach a wide 
range of domestic and foreign investors. In 
addition, SSIAM also continues to improve the 
operational efficiency of investment products, 
and reporting and data management systems. 
We also continue to work on brand awareness 
and communication to increase public 
awareness of our investment products.

Due to complicated geopolitical and economic 
developments, as well as the unpredictability of 
the pandemic, we assess that 2022 will continue 
to be difficult for the securities industry in 
general and the fund management industry 
in particular. However, the increased ability 
to control Covid-19, high vaccine coverage 
and initiatives to promote economic growth 
have contributed to making Vietnam an 
attractive investment destination not only for 
domestic investors but also for international 
organizations. The presence of many foreign 
fund management companies with abundant 
source of capital has also made the domestic 
environment more competitive. Taking 
advantage of its position as a leading domestic 
fund management company, SSIAM continues 
to expand its network by cooperating with 
domestic and foreign distribution partners. At 
the same time, SSIAM continuously evaluates 
the effectiveness of existing products, research 
and deploy new ones to promptly adapt to 
market and policy changes, as well as to match 
the needs of investors.

The medium and longterm 
goals of SSIAM are to 
effectively manage 
investors’ entrusted 
capital, and to grow total 
AUM in a sustainable way. 

Plans for 2022

Developing distribution 
channels
SSIAM will maintain traditional distribution 
channel for mutual funds through domestic and 
foreign securities companies, and several other 
channels to reach potential customers. At the 
same time, we plan to expand our distribution 
reach via mobile and online applications.

Upgrading operating 
systems and improving 
processes

We continue to work with the accounting and fund 
management system provider, Bravo. In 2021, 
Bravo collaborated with us to help standardize 
the accounting process and calculating net asset 
value of funds and portfolios, building a better 
management reporting system, and upgrading 
specialized functions. All this work is done to limit 
operational risks and manual errors and thereby 
increase fund reports’ accuracy and efficiency.

In 2021, we put a new fund certificate trading 
system in place, replacing the old system with 
many outstanding features, such as eKYC to help 
new investors register easily for a trading account. 
In 2022, we will continue to collaborate with 
systems provider to upgrade, improve and deploy 
new functions that have been on the roadmap to 
increase customer services.

New product 
development and 
expanding current 
products

After establishing new mutual and member 
funds in 2021, we will continue researching new 
products that are suitable with market needs. 
We are constantly implementing projects to 
choose the most suitable product in the current 
market period. We also continue to pursue the 
voluntary pension fund and are considering the 
right timing for its launch.

With the existing product suite, SSIAM continues 
to focus on scaling fund size and the portfolio 
to operate more efficiently. We will also target 
customers with idle cash in commercial banks 
with our bond fund, which is an attractive 
alternative to bank deposits. In addition, 
domestic retail investors will be our focus in 
the upcoming time. In the past year, the strong 
participation of this group (now commonly 
known as "F0 investors") is a big milestone for 
the stock market. The total number of newly 
opened accounts in 2021 is more than 1.5 million 
accounts, one and a half times larger than the 
total number of newly opened accounts in 
2017-2020. This figure culminated to more 
than 226,000 as of December 2021. However, 
new capital market penetration accounts for 
only about 4% of the population of more than 
100 million – despite the exponential growth in 
recent years, we believe this trend will continue 
in 2022 and for years to come; SSIAM can seize 
the opportunity to bring diversified investment 
products to investors.
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Organizational
structure 

Board of Managers

| CEO

| COO

| Deputy CEO 

 y CEO of SSIAM since 2010. 

 y Ms. Hang has many years of experience working at SSIAM, SSI Securities 
JSC (SSI) and W.P.Stewart, a fund management company based in New York. 
At SSI, Ms. Hang  held the position of Director of Investment Consulting and 
Analysis Division, Assistant to the Chairman of the Board of Directors, and 
Director of the Institutional Client Development Division.

 y She is a member of the Board of Directors of several listed companies.

 y Ms. Hang holds a Master in Finance and BA in Accounting from American 
University, USA. 

 y Joining SSIAM in2011, Ms. Linh is currently the Chief Operating Officer in 
charge of the Operations Division including accounting, fund operations, 
administration, human resources, and information technology of SSIAM. 

 y Ms. Linh holds a Master's degree in Banking from the University of New 
South Wales and a Bachelor's degree in Finance and Accounting from the 
University of Sydney, Australia.

 y Joining SSIAM in 2007, Mr. Dung is currently Deputy CEO in charge of 
investment in private companies. Mr. Dung has many years of experience in 
finance and investment with financial institutions such as ABN AMRO, CBOT 
and Intercall in Chicago, USA.

 y He is a member of the Board of Directors of several listed companies.

 y Mr. Dung holds a BA in Economics from Knox College, and an MBA from Loyola 
University, Chicago, USA, where he is a member of the Beta Gamma Sigma 
fraternity and a member of the International Risk Management Association.

Ms. Le Thi Le Hang 

Ms. To Thuy Linh  

Mr. Nguyen Phan Dung  

43

CHAIRMAN

Investment Division
Investment 

Advisory Division
Business Development 

Department
Operations Division

Internal Audit CEO

Legal and Internal
Control Department

Corporate Gorvernance |
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People of SSIAM

Number of employees at
the end of 2021 42

Remuneration policy
SSIAM implements a competitive remuneration policy that is suitable 
with everyone’s capability. The aim is to attract the top personnel in the 
industry and maintain the Company’s competitive advantage to achieve 
our long-term and sustainable development goals. We aim to achieve 
this through employing both young, dynamic and mature, experienced 
personnels.

Personnel quality
We understand that high quality human resources are the fundamental 
factor for the success of the company. Therefore, SSIAM always focuses 
on building and improving the quality of our personnels. In addition to 
honing their professional skills, we aim to foster company spirit, work 
enthusiasm, responsibility, and collaboration skills of our employees. In 
recruitment, we select candidates with these qualities and those who 
share our working culture in order to maintain the best human resources 
for the company

In 2021, we have hired many new employees to satisfy the increasing 
workload when new funds and portfolios were established, especially 
for the: Investment department, Legal and Internal Control department, 
Accounting department, and Business Development department.

During the process of operation and development, SSIAM’s business philosophy 
is "Investment activities should strictly comply with legal regulations, 
commitments to customers, and application of international risk management 
standards.” Therefore, SSIAM identifies risk management as one of our top 
priorities. 

In 2021, we continued to systematize and update our business processes. We 
issued to employees company-wide a detailed and efficient work guidance 
system. We have also put into operation a new portfolio and fund management 
system to replace the old system that no longer meets the developmental 
requirements of the company, limiting operational risks due to manual operating 
error and increasing operational efficiency.

The Legal and Internal Control department regularly updates new legal regulations 
to ensure that the departments perform their work in accordance with the law. 
The Legal Department, as well as other departments of SSIAM, also actively 
contributed ideas in the process of developing the Securities Law and guiding 
documents. This contribution not only helps the development of the industry, 
but also helps us to anticipate changes in legal regulations that may later affect 
company operations and help the company reduce operational risks.

Risk  Management 

Investment activities 
should strictly comply 
with legal regulations, 
commitments to 
customers, and 
application of 
international risk 
management standards.

employees
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The company
SSI Asset Management Company Limited is 
a subsidiary wholly owned by SSI Securities 
Corporation. The Company was established in 
Vietnam under Decision No. 194/2007/QD-
SSI dated 1 April 2007 issued by the Board of 
Directors of SSI and under Business, Certification 
No. 19/UBCK-GP dated 3 August 2007, and 
the most recent License No. 99/GPDC-UBCK 
dated 5 November 2021 of the State Securities 
Commission for 50 years of operation. The 
Company’s charter capital is VND 75 billion.

The Company’s main businesses are to provide 
fund management service, investment portfolio 
management service and investment consultant.

As at 31 December 2021, the company is 
managing eleven (11) funds, namely SSI 
Investment Member Fund (SSI IMF), SSI 
Sustainable Competitive Advantage Fund (SSI-
SCA), ETF SSIAM VNX50 Fund, SSI Bond Fund 
(SSIBF), ETF SSIAM VN30 Fund, Vietnam Long-
term Growth Fund (VLGF), ETF SSIAM VNFIN LEAD 
Fund, Vietnam Digitalization Fund (VDF), Daiwa-
SSIAM Vietnam Growth Fund II L.P, Daiwa-SSIAM 
Vietnam Growth Fund III L.P and Vietnam Growth 
Investment Fund L.P.

General Information

The chairman
Mr. Nguyen Manh Hung was appointed as the Chairman of the Company in accordance with Decision 
No. 55/2020/QD-HDQT dated 26 May 2020 by the Board of Directors of SSI. 

Board of Directors
Members of the Management during the year and at the date of these financial statements are as follows:

NAME TITLE DATE OF APPOINTMENT

Ms. Le Thi Le Hang Chief Executive Officer Appointed on 30 September 2010

Mr. Nguyen Phan Dung Deputy Chief Executive Officer Appointed on 15 July 2013

Ms. To Thuy Linh Deputy Chief Executive Officer Appointed on 15 November 2016

Legal representative
The legal representative of the Company during the year and at the date of these financial statement is 
Ms. Le Thi Le Hang, Chief Executive Officer of the Company.

Auditors
The auditors of the Company are Ernst & Young Vietnam Limited.
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Management of SSI Asset Management (“the Company”) presents this report and the Company’s 
financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2021.

Management’s responsibility in respect of the 
financial statements

 Management is responsible for the financial statements of each financial year which give a true and 
fair view of the financial position of the Company and of the results of its operations, its cash flows 
and its changes in owner’s equity for the year. In preparing those financial statements, Management 
of the Company is required to:

 y Select suitable accounting policies and apply 
them consistently;

 y Make judgments and estimates that are 
reasonable and prudent; 

 y State whether applicable accounting 
standards have been followed, subject to any 

material departures disclosed and explained in 
the financial statements; and

 y Prepare the financial statements on the 
going concern basis unless it is inappropriate 
to presume that the Company will continue its 
business.

Management is responsible for ensuring that all proper accounting records are kept which disclose, 
with reasonable accuracy at any time, the financial position of the Company and to ensure that the 
accounting records comply with the applied accounting system. It is also responsible for safeguarding 
the assets of the Company, hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of 
fraud and other irregularities.

Management confirms that it has complied with the above requirements in preparing the 
accompanying financial statements.

Report of
management 

Statement by management
Management does hereby state that, in its opinion, the accompanying financial 
statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as 
at 31 December 2021, and of the results of its operations, its cash flows and its 
changes in owner’s equity for the year then ended in accordance with Vietnamese 
Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting System, accounting 
guidance applicable to asset management companies and other statutory 
requirements relevant to preparation and presentation of financial statements.

For and on behalf of Management:

Ms. Le Thi Le Hang

Chief Executive Officer

Hanoi, Vietnam

30 March 2022
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To:  The Owner of  SSI Asset Management Company Limited

We have audited the financial statements of SSI Asset Management Company Limited (“the Company”) as 
prepared on 30 March 2022 and set out on pages 3 to 41 which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 December 
2021, the income statement, the cash flow statement and the statement of changes in owner’s equity for the 
year then ended and the notes thereto.

Management’s responsibility
The company’s Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Company’s 
financial statements according to Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting 
System, accounting guidance applicable to asset management companies and other statutory requirements 
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements and for such internal control as 
Management determines is necessary to enable the preparation and presentation of financial statements 
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with Vietnamese Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply 
with ethical requirements, plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making 
those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the Company's preparation and 
fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's 
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by Management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation 
of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion.

Independent
auditors’ report

Auditors’ opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view, in all material respects, of the financial 
position of the Company as at 31 December 2021, and of the results of its operations, its cash flows and its 
changes in owner’s equity for the year then ended in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, 
Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting System, accounting guidance applicable to asset management companies 
and other statutory requirements relevant to the preparation and presentation of financial statements.

Ernst & Young Vietnam Limited

 

Hanoi, Vietnam

30 March 2022
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Balance sheet 
as at 31 December 2021

CODE ITEMS NOTES ENDING BALANCE 
VND

BEGINNING BALANCE 
VND

ASSETS

100 A. CURRENT ASSETS 175,963,643,624 97,045,349,426 

110 I. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 4 14,347,082,329 35,796,036,116 

111 1.  Cash 4,347,082,329 4,796,036,116 

112 2.  Cash equivalents 10,000,000,000 31,000,000,000 

120 II.   SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS 5 126,206,249,410 48,808,161,440 

121 1.   Short-term investments 126,389,353,859 49,737,404,940 

129 2. Provision for short-term investments       (183,104,449) (929,243,500)

130 III.  SHORT-TERM RECEIVABLES 33,606,843,861 10,414,991,764 

132 1.     Prepayment to suppliers 11,972,503,200 102,430,000 

134 2.     Receivables from operating activities 6 16,282,457,228 9,188,938,341 

135 3.     Other receivables 7 5,351,883,433 1,123,623,423 

150 IV.  OTHER SHORT-TERM ASSETS 8 1,803,468,024 2,026,160,106 

151 1.     Short-term prepaid expense 783,014,199 1,516,124,584 

154 2.    Tax & other receivables from the State 13 597,877,333 -

158 3.    Other current assets 422,576,492 510,035,522 

200 B.  NON-CURRENT ASSETS 43,851,354,688              3,864,451,390

220 I.  FIXED ASSETS 7,986,059,257 3,217,305,945 

221 1.  Tangible fixed assets 9 1,185,306,808 215,265,104 

222 Cost 2,385,169,499 1,245,569,499 

223 Accumulated depreciation    (1,199,862,691) (1,030,304,395)

227 2.  Intangible fixed assets 10 6,800,752,449 3,002,040,841 

228 Cost 9,244,756,195 4,585,756,195 

229 Accumulated amortization    (2,444,003,746) (1,583,715,354)

250 II.  LONG-TERM FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS 11 34,621,700,000 -

252  1.  Investment in associates 34,621,700,000 -

260 III. OTHER LONG-TERM ASSETS 12 1,243,595,431 647,145,445 

261 1.    Long-term prepaid expense 668,595,431 432,145,445 

262 2. Deferred income tax assets 13,2 560,000,000 200,000,000 

268 3.    Other long-term assets 15,000,000 15,000,000 

270 TOTAL ASSETS 219,814,998,312 100,909,800,816 

Balance sheet ( continued) 

as at 31 December 2021

CODE ITEMS NOTES ENDING BALANCE 
VND

BEGINNING 
BALANCE VND

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

300 A.  LIABILITIES 25,233,594,940 8,393,160,325

310 I.  CURRENT LIABILITIES 25,193,594,940 8,373,160,325

314 1.     Statutory obligations 13 1,532,398,047 1,660,085,415

315 2.     Payables to employees 15,099,864,644 4,555,967,128

319 3.     Other short-term payables 14 7,107,860,936 2,157,107,782 

328 4.     Short-term unrealized income 1,453,471,313 -

330 II.  NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 40,000,000 20,000,000

359 1.     Compensation fund for loss to investors 15 40,000,000 20,000,000

400 B.  OWNER’S EQUITY 16  194,581,403,372 92,516,640,491

411 1.  Charter capital 75,000,000,000 30,000,000,000 

417 2.  Charter capital supplementary reserve 3,000,000,000 3,000,000,000 

419 3.  Financial and operational risk reserve 3,000,000,000 3,000,000,000 

420 4.  Undistributed earnings 113,581,403,372 56,516,640,491

440 TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 219,814,998,312 100,909,800,816



| SSIAM Annual Report 202156 57Audited Financial Statements  |

Balance sheet ( continued) 

as at 31 December 2021

CODE ITEMS NOTES ENDING BALANCE
VND

BEGINNING 
BALANCE VND

5 1.     FOREIGN CURRENCIES 8,794,802 1,646,183,598

6 2.  CUSTODY SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY 17 31,764,700,000 26,000,000,000

IN WHICH:

2.1.  Tradable securities 31,764,700,000 26,000,000,000

20 3. NON-DEPOSITORY SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY 34,621,700,000  305,000,000

30 4.  DEPOSITS OF TRUST INVESTORS 18 159,906,441,608 44,291,309,614

31 4.1.  Deposits of domestic trust investors 157,178,058,263 32,401,861,719

32 4.2.  Deposits of foreign trust investors 2,728,383,345 11,889,447,895

40 5.  INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO OF TRUST INVESTORS 19 1,562,369,886,829 321,351,858,380

41 5.1.  Domestic trust investors 1,521,479,470,804 291,637,018,287

42 5.2.  Foreign trust investors 40,890,416,025 29,714,840,093

50 6.  Receivables of trust investors 20 1,074,683,053 776,564,658

51 7.  PAYABLES OF TRUST INVESTORS 21 13,024,602,860 14,401,186,651

Off balance sheet items

Prepared by Approved by Approved by

Ms. Tran Ngoc Mai Ms. Mai Huyen Ngoc Ms. Le Thi Le Hang 

Accountant Chief Accountant Chief Executive Officer

Prepared by Approved by Approved by

Ms. Tran Ngoc Mai Ms. Mai Huyen Ngoc Ms. Le Thi Le Hang 

Accountant Chief Accountant Chief Executive Officer

Hanoi, Vietnam 30 March 2022 Hanoi, Vietnam 30 March 2022

Income statement
for the year ended 31 December 2021

CODE ITEMS NOTES CURRENT YEAR      VND PREVIOUS YEAR     
VND

1 1.  Revenue 22 111,724,376,734 33,452,796,681

2 2.  Deductions -   -

10 3.  Net revenue from operating activities 22 111,724,376,734 33,452,796,681 

11 4.  Operating expenses 23 (51,726,249,639) (23,058,335,825)

20 5.  Gross profit from operating activities 59,998,127,095 10,394,460,856 

21 6.  Financial income 24 33,503,816,442 20,920,652,283 

22 7.  Financial expenses 25 (412,222,127) (1,126,878,004)

25 8.  General and administrative expenses 26 (21,908,440,252) (17,332,866,219)

30 9.  Gross profit from operating activities 71,181,281,158 12,855,368,916

31 10.  Other income 173,754,471 6,738,488 

32 11.  Other expenses (12,600,000) -

40 12.  Other profit 161,154,471 6,738,488

50 13.  Profit before tax 71,342,435,629 12,862,107,404

51 14.  Current corporate income tax expense 13.1 (14,637,672,748) (1,906,438,756)

52 15. Deferred tax income 13.2 360,000,000 200,000,000 

60 16.  Net profit after tax 57,064,762,881 11,155,668,648
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CODE ITEMS NOTES CURRENT YEAR
VND

PREVIOUS YEAR
VND

I.  CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

VND 1.  Profit before tax 71,342,435,629 12,862,107,404

2.  Adjustments for: (877,766,895) (3,248,786,196)

 2  y Depreciation and amortization of fixed assets 1,029,846,688 463,138,858 

3  y Provision expenses (726,139,051) (769,691,880)

4  y Unrealized loss from changes in foreign exchange rates 30,998,109 31,487,505 

5  y Gain from investing activities (1,212,472,641) (2,973,720,679)

8 3.  Operating profit before changes in working capital 70,464,668,734 9,613,321,208

9  y Decrease/(increase) in receivables (23,414,434,102) 12,513,995,783

10  y Decrease/(increase) in tradable securities  (74,651,948,919) 13,759,415,038 

11  y (Decrease)/increase in payables 17,493,567,990 (2,890,285,177)

12  y (Increase)/decrease in prepaid expenses  496,660,399 (1,092,957,029)

14  y Corporate income tax paid 13  (15,961,933,456) (7,745,134,387)

20  y Cash flows from/(use in) operating activities (25,573,419,354) 24,158,355,436

II.   CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING    ACTIVITIES

21 1.    Purchases of fixed assets and other long-term assets (5,775,850,000) (1,870,872,800)

22 2.   Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets and other non-current assets - 5,772,727

23 3. Purchase of debt instruments of other entities  (23,000,000,000) (51,000,000,000)

24 4.  Proceeds from disposal of debt instruments of other entities  21,000,000,000 49,500,000,000 

25 5.   Purchases of capital contribution of other entities  (39,992,200,000) -

26 6.  Capital contribution recovery of other entities  5,370,500,000 

27 7.  Interests and dividends received 1,522,426,063 2,461,336,993

30 NET CASH FLOWS USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (40,875,123,937) (903,763,080)

Cash flow statement 
(under indirect method)

for the year ended 31 December 2021

CODE TIMES NOTES CURRENT YEAR
VND

PREVIOUS YEAR
VND

III.  CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITY

31 1.  Proceeds from issuing shares,receiving capital contribution 
from owners 16 45,000,000,000 -

36 2.  Dividends, profit distributed to owners 16 - (36,120,042,543)

40  y Net cash flows from/(used in) financial activity 45,000,000,000 (36,120,042,543)

50  y Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents during 
the year

(21,448,543,291) (12,865,450,187)

60  y Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 35,796,036,116 48,671,418,633

61  y Effect of changes in foreign exchange rates (410,496) (9,932,330)

70 Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 4 14,347,082,329 35,796,036,116

Prepared by Approved by Approved by

Ms. Tran Ngoc Mai Ms. Mai Huyen Ngoc Ms. Le Thi Le Hang 

Accountant Chief Accountant Chief Executive Officer

Hanoi, Vietnam 30 March 2022
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1. The company
SSI Asset Management Company Limited (“the Company” or “SSIAM”) is a one-member limited company 
which was established in Vietnam under Decision No. 194/2007/QD-SSI dated 1 April 2007 by SSI Securities 
Corporation (“SSI”) and under the Business Registration Certification No.19/UBCK-GP dated 03 August 2007, 
the most recent License No. 99/GPDC-UBCK dated 5 November 2021 of the State Securities Commission. The 
Company is granted 50 years of operation since the establishment date. 

The company is managing eleven (11) funds, namely SSI Investment Member Fund (SSI IMF), SSI Sustainable 
Competitive Advantage Fund (SSI-SCA), ETF SSIAM VNX50 Fund, SSI Bond Fund (SSIBF), ETF SSIAM VN30 Fund, 
Vietnam Long-term Growth Fund (VLGF), ETF SSIAM VNFIN LEAD Fund, Vietnam Digitalization Fund (VDF), 
Daiwa-SSIAM Vietnam Growth Fund II L.P, Daiwa-SSIAM Vietnam Growth Fund III L.P and Vietnam Growth 
Investment Fund L.P. 

The Company’s Head Office is located on 5th Floor, 1C Ngo Quyen Building, Ly Thai To Ward, Hoan Kiem District, 
Hanoi.

The total number of employees of the Company as at 31 December 2021 is 42 persons (as at 31 December 2020: 
33 persons).

At 31 December 2021, the Company has two (02) associates as follows:

 y Cong Thang Alpha Joint Stock Company

 y KAC Investment Joint Stock Company

Notes to the financial 
statements
as at 31 December 2021 and for the year then ended
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2. Basis of preparation

2.1 Basis of preparation
The Company’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting policies for asset management 
companies as set out in Circular No. 125/2011/TT-BTC dated 5 September 2011 issued by the Ministry of Finance 
and Vietnamese Accounting Standards issued by the Ministry of Finance as per:

 y Decision No. 149/2001/QD-BTC dated 31 December 
2001 on the Issuance and Promulgation of Four 
Vietnamese Standards on Accounting (Series 1);

 y Decision No. 165/2002/QD-BTC dated 31 
December 2002 on the Issuance and Promulgation of 
Six Vietnamese Standards on Accounting (Series 2); 

 y Decision No. 234/2003/QD-BTC dated 30 
December 2003 on the Issuance and Promulgation of 
Six Vietnamese Standards on Accounting (Series 3); 

 y Decision No. 12/2005/QD-BTC dated 15 February 
2005 on the Issuance and Promulgation of Six 
Vietnamese Standards on Accounting (Series 4); and

 y Decision No. 100/2005/QD-BTC dated 28 
December 2005 on the Issuance and Promulgation of 
Four Vietnamese Standards on Accounting (Series 5).

Accordingly, the accompanying balance sheet, 
income statement, cash flows statement, statement 
of changes in owner’s equity and the notes thereto, 
including their utilization, are not designed for 
those who are not informed of Vietnam’s accounting 
principles, procedures and practices and furthermore 
are not intended to present the financial position, 
results of operations, cash flows and changes in 
owner’s equity in accordance with accounting 
principles and practices generally accepted in 
countries and territories other than Vietnam.

2.2 Applied accounting documentation system 
The applied accounting documentation system is the General Journal system.

2.3 Fiscal year 
The Company’s fiscal year applicable for the preparation of its financial statements starts on 1 January and ends 
on 31 December. The Company also prepares interim financial statements for six-month period ending 30 June 
annually.

Notes to the financial 
statements (continued) 

as at 31 December 2021 and for the year then ended

Notes to the financial 
statements (continued) 

as at 31 December 2021 and for the year then ended

2.4 Accounting currency 
The financial statements are prepared in Vietnam dong (“ VND”) which is also the Company’s 
accounting currency.

3. Summary of significant accounting policies

3.1  Changes in accounting policies and notes to financial statements
The accounting policies adopted by the Company in preparation of the financial statements are consistent with 
those followed in the preparation of the Company’s financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020.

On 17 December 2021, the Ministry of Finance issued Circular 114/2021/TT-BTC replacing Circular No. 146/2014/
TT-BTC of the Minister of Finance guiding financial regime for securities companies and fund management 
companies (“Circular 114”). The main changes of Circular 114 include:

 y The making of provision and resolution 
for devaluation of inventories, impairment of 
investments, bad debts will be conducted by securities 
companies, fund management companies, branches 
of foreign fund management companies who are 
licensed to establish and operate in Vietnam in 
compliance with the provisions of Circular 48/2019/
TT-BTC dated 08 August 2019 of the Minister 
of Finance guiding the setting up and handling 
provisions for devaluation of inventory, impairment 
of investments, bad debts and warranties for 
products, goods, services, construction works at the 
enterprise and amendment documents, supplement, 
replace (if any);

 y For charter capital supplementary reserve which 
is appropriated under provision of Circular No. 
146/2014/TT-BTC: used to supplement the charter 
capital according to current regulations;

 y For operational risk and financial reserve which 
is appropriated under provisions of Circular No. 
146/2014/TT-BTC: used to supplement charter 
capital or utilized as per decision of the General 
Meeting shareholders, the Board of members or the 
Chairman of the company in accordance with current 
regulations.

Circular 114 is effective from 01 February 2022.

3.2 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, cash at banks and short-term, highly liquid investments with 
an original maturity of less than or equal to three months that are readily convertible into known amounts of 
cash and that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.
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3.3  Trading securities and other investments
Investments in associates

Investments in associates over which the company has 
significant influence are applied to the historical cost 
method.

Profit distributions from the accumulated net profit of 
an affiliated company after the date on which significant 
influence is exercised by the Company is recognized 
in the statement of income. Other distributions are 

treated as a return on investments and are deducted 
from the value of the investment.

The Company makes provision for investments in 
associates if the investment is lost due to the loss of 
affiliated company. Increase or decrease in provision 
account balance is recognized in financial expenses 
during the year.

Trading securities and other investments

Trading securities include listed and non-listed 
securities. Securities are initially measured at cost. 

Other investments are initially measured at cost and 
are classified into short-term investments and long-
term investments. Short-term investments consist of 
deposits at bank with term of twelve (12) months or less, 
except for deposits with terms of three (3) months or 
less which are included in “Cash and cash equivalents”, 
and investments in Governmental bonds with the aim 
to trade within over 3 months to 12 months. Long-
term investments consist of Government bonds, loans, 

deposits and other long-term investments whose 
terms are more than twelve (12) months.

Trading securities and other investments are 
subsequently measured at cost and subject to provision 
for diminution in price if book values are higher than 
measurable market values. Equity securities’ dividends 
received and debt securities’ coupons received 
are recognised as a deduction in carrying value of 
commercial securities for the portion incurred before 
the purchasing date, and as an investment income for 
the portion incurred since the purchasing date. 

3.4 Provision for diminution in price of securities
Provision for diminution is made for individual stocks which have market values lower than book values. Provision of 
tradable securities diminution recorded as at the reporting date is the difference between market values and book 
values in accordance with Circular No.146/2014/TT-BTC issued by Ministry of Finance dated 6 October 2014 proving 
guidance on financial regime applicable for securities companies and asset management companies. Increases or 
decreases in outstanding balance of provision are recorded in the operating expense in the year.

Notes to the financial 
statements (continued) 

as at 31 December 2021 and for the year then ended

Notes to the financial 
statements (continued) 

as at 31 December 2021 and for the year then ended

For securities listed on Hanoi Stock Exchange and Ho 
Chi Minh City Stock Exchange, their market prices are 
their closing prices on the trading day preceding the 
date of setting up the provision.

For unlisted securities but registered for trading on 
UpCom, their market prices are their closing prices on 
the trading day preceding the date of setting up the 
provision.

For  securities which are unlisted and unregistered for 
trading on UpCom, market price used as a basis for 
setting up the provision is the average of actual trading 

prices quoted by 3 securities companies conducting 
transactions within one month before the date of 
setting up the provision.

The company does not make provision for the 
securities which do not have enough 3 quotations or 
are not transacted within one month prior to the date 
of setting up the provision.

For the delisted securities and suspended trading 
securities from the sixth day afterward, their prices are 
the book value at the latest financial report date.

3.5 Receivables
Receivables are initially recorded at cost and subsequently always presented at cost.

Receivables are subject to review for impairment based on their overdue status or estimated loss arising from 
undue debts of corporate debtors who have bankruptcy or are under liquidation; or of individual debtors who are 
missing, have fled, are prosecuted, detained or tried by law enforcement bodies, are serving sentences or have 
deceased. Increases or decreases to the provision balance are recorded as “General and administrative expenses” 
in the income statement.

The Company has made provision for doubtful receivables and handling irrecoverable receivables in accordance 
with Circular No. 48/2019/TT-BTC dated 08 August 2019 issued by the Ministry of Finance. Accordingly, the 
provision rates for overdue receivables are as follows:

As for overdue receivables, provision level is prescribed as follows:

OVERDUE PERIOD PROVISION RATE

From six (6) months to less than one (1) year 30%

From one (1) year to less than two (2) years 50%

From two (2) years to less than three (3) years 70%

From three (3) years and above 100%
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

3.6 Payables and accrued expenses
Payables and accrued expense are recognised for amount to be paid in the future for goods and services received, 
whether or not billed to the Company.

3.7 Fixed assets
Fixed assets including tangible fixed assets and intangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and amortization.

The cost of a fixed asset comprises of its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset 
to working condition for its intended use. Expenditure for additions, improvements and renewals are capitalized. 
Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to the income statement. When assets are sold or disposed, 
their cost and accumulated depreciation and amortization are derecognised from the balance sheet and any gain or 
loss resulting from their disposal is included in the income statement.

3.8 Depreciation and amortization
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets and amortization of intangible fixed assets are calculated on a straight-line 
basis over the estimated useful life of each asset as follows:

3.9 Foreign currency transactions 
Transactions in currencies other than the Company’s reporting currency of VND are recorded at the actual transaction 
exchange rates of commercial banks at transaction dates. At the end of the period, monetary balances denominated 
in foreign currencies are determined as follows:

Notes to the financial 
statements (continued) 

as at 31 December 2021 and for the year then ended

Office supplies 3 - 5 years

Computer software                                             5 years

 y Monetary assets are translated at buying exchange rate of the commercial bank where the Company conducts 
transactions regularly.

 y Monetary liabilities are translated at selling exchange rate of the commercial bank where the Company conducts 
transactions regularly.

All foreign exchange differences incurred during the period and arisen from the revaluation of monetary accounts 
denominated in foreign currencies at the end of the period are taken to the separate income statement.

3.10 Corporate income tax
Current corporate income tax 

Current tax assets and liabilities for this period is measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to 
the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted at the 
balance sheet date.

Current income tax is charged or credited to the income statement, except when it relates to items recognised 
directly to equity, in which case the current income tax is also taken to equity.

Current income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right for the Company to set 
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the Company intends to settle its current tax assets 
and liabilities on a net basis.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method on temporary differences at the balance sheet 
date between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount for financial reporting purpose. 

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except the deferred tax liability arises 
from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction which at the time of the transaction affects 
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carried forward of unused tax 
credit and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which 
deductible temporary differences, carried forward of unused tax credit and unused tax losses can be utilized, except 
the deferred tax arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction which at the time of the 
transaction affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

Notes to the financial 
statements (continued) 

as at 31 December 2021 and for the year then ended
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies 
(continued)

3.10 Corporate income tax (continued)
Deferred tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced 
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or 
part of the asset to be recovered. Previously unrecognised deferred income tax assets are re assessed at 
each balance sheet date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable 
profit will allow the deferred tax assets to be recovered.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in 
the year when the asset realized or the liability is settled based on tax rates and tax laws that have been 
enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax is charged or credited to the income statement, except 
when it relates to items recognised directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in 
equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current 
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxable 
entity and the same taxation authority and the Company intends to settle its current tax assets and 
liabilities on a net basis.

3.11 Profit appropriation and funds
The Company add 5% of the profit in the period to additional reserve fund of charter capital and 
operational risk and financial reserve funds until the balance is equal to 10% of the charter capital.

Profit after tax is transferred to SSI Securities Corporation under the decision of SSI’s Board of Directors 
and prevailing legal regulations in Vietnam.

Notes to the financial 
statements (continued) 

as at 31 December 2021 and for the year then ended

3.12 Provision fund to compensate investors for loss
Provision for compensation for investors’ losses is made annually and included in management 
expenses to compensate investors for losses in case the Fund Management Company causes 
damage to investors due to technical problems and negligence of fund management practitioners 
in the course of operations. In the fiscal year, if the set up provision can not be fully used up, it can be 
carried over to the next year for further use.

3.13 Trust capital and trust assets
Trust capital from investors is recorded and monitored in the off balance sheet.

Trust assets created from the use of trust capital are recorded and monitored in the off balance sheet.

Receivables of trust investors incurred from other trust investments such as: deposit interest 
receivables, other benefits and other receivables of trust investors are recorded and monitored off 
balance sheet.

Payables of trust investors such as management fee payables to the Company and other payables 
are recorded and monitored in the off balance sheet.

3.14 Trust capital and trust assets
Trust capital from investors is recorded and monitored in the off balance sheet.

Trust assets created from the use of trust capital are recorded and monitored in the off balance sheet.

Receivables of trust investors incurred from other trust investment such as: deposit interest 
receivables, other benefits and other receivables of trust investors are recorded and monitored off 
balance sheet.

Payables of trust investors such as management fee payables to the Company and other payables 
are recorded and monitored in the off balance sheet.

Notes to the financial 
statements (continued) 

as at 31 December 2021 and for the year then ended
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

3.14 Trust capital and trust assets (continued)
Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the 
revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is determined by fair value of received or receivable amount after deducting 
discounts and sale returns. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised: 

Revenue from services

Revenue from services includes revenue from fund management service, investment portfolio management service 
and bonuses which are recognised based on the terms of the contracts. 

Revenue from trading securities

Revenue from trading securities are determined by the differences between selling prices and the weighted average 
cost of securities sold.

Interest

Revenue is recognised in the income statement on accrual basis (taking into account the effective yield on the 
asset), except for doubtful collectability. 

Dividends

Income is recognised when the Company’s entitlement as an investor to receive the dividend is established. Dividend 
received as shares or bonus shares is not recognised as income but an increase in number of share. 

Other income

Other incomes include revenues from activities that occur infrequently, in addition to turnover-generating activities, 
including: revenues from disposal of fixed assets (“FA”), sale of FA; collect fines from customers for breach of contract; 
collect indemnified insurance premiums; collect receivables which have been written off in the previous year’s expenses; 
payables  which have lost their owners are recorded as incomes; collect reduced, refundable tax; and other revenues 
recognized as other income in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standard No. 14 – Revenue and other income.

3.15  Employee benefits
3.15.1  Post-employment benefits

Post-employment benefits are paid to retired or resigned employees of the Company by the Social Insurance Agency 

Notes to the financial 
statements (continued) 

as at 31 December 2021 and for the year then ended

which belongs to the Ministry of Labor, Invalids and Social Affairs. The Company will have to pay social insurance 
premium for each employee at the rate of 17.5% (17% in the 12-month period from 1 July 2021 to 30 June 2022 
as prescribed in Resolution No.68 dated on 1 July 2021) monthly basic salary, salary-related allowance and other 
supplements. Other than that, the Company has no further obligation relating to post-employment benefits.

3.15.2  Serverance pay 

According to the Labor Code No. 45/2019/QH14 effective from 01 January 2021 and Decree No. 145/2020/ND-CP of 
the Government – detailing and guiding on executing some articles of the Labor Code on working conditions and labor 
relations, the Company is responsible for paying a severance allowance equal to half a month's salary for each working 
year to employees who voluntarily resign and fully meet factors in accordance with provisions of law. Working time 
to calculate severance allowance is the total time the employee has actually worked for the Company minus the time 
the employee has participated in unemployment insurance according to the provisions of the law on unemployment 
insurance and the working time has been paid severance allowance by the employer. 

3.15.3  Unemployment insurance

According to Circular No. 31/2010/TT-BLDTBXH providing guidelines for Article No. 127/2008/ND-CP of 
unemployment insurance, the Bank is required to contribute to the unemployment insurance at the rate of 1% 
of salary and wage fund of unemployment insurance joiners and deduct 1% of monthly salary and wage of each 
employee to contribute to the unemployment insurance fund. According to Decision No. 28/2021/QD-TTg, from 
1 October 2021, the Company is entitled to reduce the unemployment insurance premium  to 0% in 12 months.

3.16  Related parties
Parties are considered related to the Company if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other 
party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions, or when 
the Company and the other party are subject to common control or significant influence. The above stakeholders 
can be companies or individuals, including close members of their families.

3.17 Operating lease
Whether an agreement is determined as a property lease agreement depends on the nature of the agreement at 
the beginning: whether the implementation of the agreement depends on the use of a certain asset and whether 
the agreement includes clauses on the use rights of the asset.

Leases under operating leases are charged to the statement of income on a straight-line basis over the term lease.

3.18  Nil balances
Items or balances required by Circular No. 125/2011/QD-BTC dated 5 September 2011 and Circular No. 146/2014/
TT-BTC dated 6 October 2014 issued by the Ministry of Finance that are not shown in these financial statements 
indicate nil balances.

Notes to the financial 
statements (continued) 

as at 31 December 2021 and for the year then ended
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Notes to the financial 
statements (continued)

as at 31 December 2021 and for the year then ended

4. Cash and cash equivalents     

ENDING BALANCE
VND

BEGINNING BALANCE
VND

Cash 4,347,082,329 4,796,036,116 

Cash on hand 97,890,379 83,320,832 

Demand deposits 4,249,191,950 4,712,715,284 

 y Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Investment and 
Development of Vietnam – Brach Ha Thanh 3,919,200,630 4,179,868,391

 y The Joint Stock Commercial Bank for 
Foreign Trade of Vietnam 116,821,130 107,902,480 

 y Shinhan Bank Limited (Vietnam) 213,170,190 424,944,413 

Cash equivalents 10,000,000,000 31,000,000,000 

Term deposits with maturity of 3 months or less 10,000,000,000 31,000,000,000 

 y Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Investment 
and Development of Vietnam - 10,000,000,000 

 y Saigon - Hanoi Commercial Joint Stock Bank - 14,000,000,000 

 y Viet Capital Bank Joint Stock Bank - 7,000,000,000 

 y Vietnam Prosperity Joint Stock Commercial Bank 10,000,000,000 -

14,347,082,329 35,796,036,116

5. Short-term investments

ENDING BALANCE OPENING BALANCE

QUANTITY VALUE (VND) QUANTITY VALUE (VND)

Short-term investments 3,176,520 113,389,353,859 2,630,584 38,737,404,940 

 y Listed shares 119,850 9,321,392,296 -   -   

 y Unlisted shares -   -   30,500 3,324,500,000 

 y Unlisted corporate bonds -   -   84 8,400,000,000 

 y Listed fund certificates 3,056,620 54,067,961,563 2,600,000 27,012,904,940 

 y Deposit certificates 50 50,000,000,000 - -

Provision for diminution in value of 
securities - (183,104,449) -   (929,243,500)

3,176,520 113,206,249,410 2,630,584 37,808,161,440

ENDING BALANCE
VND

BEGINNING BALANCE
VND

Term deposits with terms of 3 months or more 13,000,000,000 11,000,000,000 

Securities investments (i) 113,389,353,859 38,737,404,940 

 y Provision for diminution in value of securities (i) (183,104,449) (929,243,500)

126,206,249,410 48,808,161,440

(i)  Detail of securities investments as follows: 
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6. Receivables from operating activities

ENDING BALANCE
 VND 

BEGINNING BALANCE
 VND 

Receivables from investment portfolio management 
service and bonus fee (i) 7,467,391,433 2,756,626,078 

Receivables from fund management service 4,516,601,498 1,923,053,496 

Receivables from securities investment consulting service 3,450,045,981 4,310,135,627 

Receivables from the subscription and redemption of fund 
certificates 848,418,316 199,123,140 

16,282,457,228 9,188,938,341 

(i) According to investment portfolio management contracts, the Company is entitled to a management fee of 
2% or less based on the net asset value of the investment portfolio or successful trading value. In addition, the 
Company is entitled to bonus fee if the actual return exceeds the expected return as stated in the investment 
portfolio management contracts.

Notes to the financial 
statements (continued)

as at 31 December 2021 and for the year then ended

7. Other receivables

8. Other short-term assets

ENDING BALANCE
VND

BEGINNING BALANCE
VND

Short-term prepayments 783,014,199 1,516,124,584 

 y Prepayment for rental expenses 506,220,000 1,012,440,000 

 y Prepayment for other outsource expenses 276,794,199 503,684,584

Tax and receivables from the State 597,877,333 -

Other short-term assets 422,576,492 510,035,522

1,803,468,024 2,026,160,106

ENDING BALANCE
VND

BEGINNING BALANCE
VND

Deposit interest receivables 152,895,890 537,884,927 

Bond interest receivables -   4,602,740 

Deposit certificates receivables 79,452,055 -

Other receivables 5,119,535,488 581,135,756 

5,351,883,433 1,123,623,423
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Notes to the financial 
statements (continued)

as at 31 December 2021 and for the year then ended

9. Tangible fixed asset

OFFICE SUPPLIES 
VND

COST

Beginning balance 1,245,569,499

Increase in the year 1,139,600,000 

Decrease in the year -   

Ending balance 2,385,169,499 

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

Beginning balance 1,030,304,395

Increase in the year 169,558,296 

Decrease in the year -   

Ending balance 1,199,862,691 

NET BOOK VALUE

Beginning balance 215,265,104    

Ending balance 1,185,306,808 

Additional information on tangible fixed assets:

ENDING BALANCE
 VND 

BEGINNING BALANCE
 VND 

Cost of tangible fixed assets which are fully 
depreciated but still in active use  996,904,699 996,904,699

10. Intangible fixed assets

COMPUTER SOFTWARE VND

COST

Beginning balance 4,585,756,195

Increase in the year 4,659,000,000 

Ending balance 9,244,756,195 

Accumulated amortization

Beginning balance 1,583,715,354

Increase in the year 860,288,392 

Ending balance 2,444,003,746 

Net book value

Beginning balance 3,002,040,841

Ending balance 6,800,752,449                

Additional information on intangible fixed assets:

ENDING BALANCE
 VND 

BEGINNING BALANCE
 VND 

Cost of intangible fixed assets which are fully 
amortized but still in active use 1,134,366,195 1,134,366,195

11. Other long-term assets

ENDING BALANCE
 VND 

BEGINNING BALANCE
 VND 

Long-term prepayment 668,595,431 432,145,445

 y Office tools and equipments 354,797,080 261,171,092 

 y Other long-term prepaid expenses  313,798,351    170,974,353

Mortgage and short-term deposits 15,000,000 15,000,000 

Deferred tax assets 560,000,000 200,000,000 

1,243,595,431 647,145,445 
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Notes to the financial 
statements (continued)

as at 31 December 2021 and for the year then ended

12. Statutory obligations

BEGINNING 
BALANCE VND

PAYABLE IN THE YEAR
VND

PAID IN THE YEAR
VND 

ENDING BALANCE
VND

RECEIVABLES

Corporate income tax (726,383,375) (14,637,672,748) 15,961,933,456 597,877,333

TOTAL (726,383,375) (14,640,672,748) 15,961,933,456 597,877,333

PAYABLES

Personal income tax 902,723,072 8,423,398,500 (8,069,588,857) 1,256,532,715

Valued added tax 2,810,669 35,244,523 (37,444,287) 610,905

Other tax 28,168,299  617,649,217    (370,563,089) 275,254,427

TOTAL 933,702,040 9,076,292,240 (8,477,596,233) 1,532,398,047

12.1  Current corporate income tax (CIT)

According to Circular No. 78/2014/TT-BTC dated 18 
June 2014 of the Ministry of Finance providing guidance 
on the implementation of the Law on Corporate 
Income Tax, the Company is subjected to the current 
CIT rate of 20%.

The Company's tax retains are subject to inspection of 
tax authorities. Because the application of tax laws and 
regulations to many types of transactions is susceptible 
to varying interpretations, the amounts reported in 
the financial statements could be changed at a later 
date upon final determination by the tax authorities.

Corporate income tax payable is determined based on 
taxable income of the current financial year. Taxable 
income differs from the income reported in the income 
statement because previous years’ taxable revenues, 
tax deductible expenses and other current year’s items 
that are either non-taxable or non-deductible are 
excluded from the taxable income. Corporate income 
tax payable is calculated using enacted tax rate at the 
balance sheet date.

(*)  Companies are eligible for a 30% reduction of corporate income tax payable in 2020 according to Resolution No. 
116/2020/QH14 on reduction of corporate income tax payable in 2020 for enterprises and cooperatives, business 
units and other organizations.

CURRENT YEAR
VND

PREVIOUS YEAR
VND

Profit before tax 71,342,435,629 12,862,107,404

Adjustments to increase 2,828,430,000 1,143,154,774

 y Non-deductible expenses 128,430,000 123,154,774

 y Working performance bonus expenses are temporarily not 
deductible tax 2,700,000,000 1,000,000,000

 y Expenses for compensation fund for loss to investors - 20,000,000

Adjustment to decrease (982,501,891) (387,842,495)

 y Non-taxable income – Exchange rate difference 30,998,109 33,157,505

 y Non-taxable income - Dividend (13,500,000) (421,000,000)

 y Expenses for salary and bonus for previous year (1,000,000,000) -

Estimate current taxable income 73,188,363,738 13,617,419,683

Corporate income tax rate 20% 20%

Estimated current CIT expense 14,637,672,748 2,723,483,937

CIT reduction in the year (*) - (817,045,181)

Estimated CIT expense for the year 14,637,672,748 1,906,438,756

CIT payable at the beginning of the year 726,383,375 6,565,079,006

CIT paid during the year (15,961,933,456) (7,745,134,387)

CIT payable at the end of the year (597,877,333) 726,383,375

The estimated current corporate income tax of the Company are as follows:
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Notes to the financial 
statements (continued)

as at 31 December 2021 and for the year then ended

12.2 Deferred tax

A deferred tax asset relates to a taxable temporary performance bonus (Note 13.1). During the year, the 
Company did not incur taxable temporary differences

13. Other short-term payables

14. Compensation fund for loss to investors

ENDING BALANCE 
VND

BEGINNING BALANCE
VND

Payables for services fee 135,083,382 140,000,000

Payables to distributors of fund certificates 1,009,034,002    786,015,937

Other payables 5,963,743,552 1,231,091,845

7,107,860,936 2,157,107,782

CURRENT YEAR 
VND

PREVIOUS YEAR
VND

Beginning balance 20,000,000 -

Number of compensation to investors in the year - -

Number of provision in the year 20,000,000 20,000,000

Ending balance 40,000,000 20,000,000
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Notes to the financial 
statements (continued)

as at 31 December 2021 and for the year then ended

16. Securities of the company deposited at the Vietnam 
Securities Depository

ENDING BALANCE BEGINNING BALANCE

QUANTITY PAR VALUE
VND

QUANTITY PAR VALUE
VND

Tradable securities 3,176,470 31,764,700,000 2,600,000   26,000,000,000

17. Net revenue from operating activities

18. Operating expenses

CURRENT YEAR
 VND

PREVIOUS YEAR
 VND

Fund management fee 45,682,714,598 14,094,867,297

Management fee from investment portfolio 
management service 36,817,315,352 12,216,658,783

Consultant fee from securities investment 21,598,084,803 4,651,360,802

Management fee from securities investment -   1,419,594,777

Revenues from the issuance and redemption of fund 
certificates 7,626,261,981 1,070,315,022

111,724,376,734 33,452,796,681

CURRENT YEAR
VND

PREVIOUS YEAR
 VND

Staff cost and other related costs 22,293,493,596 11,967,028,929

Depreciation and amortization 550,510,388 363,096,160

Costs related to fund management 21,723,986,146 4,070,552,229

Costs related to portfolio management 5,009,916,884 686,238,954

Costs related to fund investment management 347,976,082 3,044,576,928

Operational expenses 208,234,268 1,015,343,966

Other expenses 1,592,132,275 1,911,498,659

51,726,249,639 23,058,335,825

19. Finanical income 

20. Financial expenses

CURRENT YEAR
VND

PREVIOUS YEAR
VND

Interest income from deposits at banks 1,695,814,021 3,238,180,001

Interest income from bonds 345,205,516 298,465,759

Dividend income 13,500,000 421,000,000

Dividend income 126,712,329 -

Gain from securities trading 31,322,374,576 16,896,239,500

Realized gain from exchange rates difference 210,000 66,767,023

33,503,816,442 20,920,652,283

CURRENT YEAR
VND

PREVIOUS YEAR
VND

Realized loss from exchange rates difference 34,545,976 164,582,564

Unrealized loss from exchange rates difference 30,998,109 31,487,505

Reversal expenses for diminution in value of 

short-term investments
(746,139,051) (789,691,880)

Loss from the sale of securities 1,092,817,093 1,720,499,815

412,222,127 1,126,878,004

Notes to the financial 
statements (continued)

as at 31 December 2021 and for the year then ended
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21. General and adminstration expenses

22. Risk management policies

CURRENT YEAR
VND

PREVIOUS YEAR
 VND

Staff cost 15,326,836,587 11,363,387,000

Depreciation and amortization 479,336,300 100,042,698

Tools and office supplies 263,191,623 121,564,940

Office rental 2,024,880,000 2,024,880,000

Outsourced services 2,279,937,145 1,056,162,555

Protocol expenses 720,513,468 801,902,208

Others 813,745,129 1,864,926,818

21,908,440,252 17,332,866,219

Risk management is integral to the whole business of the Company. The Company has a system of controls in 
place to maintain an acceptable balance between the cost of risks occurring and the cost of managing the risks. 
Management continually monitors the Company's risk management process to ensure that an appropriate 
balance between risk and control is achieved.

Management reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks which are summarized below.

22.1. Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 
changes in market prices. Market risks comprise four types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk, commodity 
price risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans 
and borrowings, term deposits, short-term investments.

In calculating the sensitivity analyses, Management assumed that the sensitivity of the balance sheet relates to 
available-for-sale debt instruments; the sensitivity of the relevant income statement item is the effect of the 
assumed changes in respective market risks based on the financial assets and financial liabilities held by the 
Company at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020.

Notes to the financial 
statements (continued)

as at 31 December 2021 and for the year then ended

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future 
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in market interest rates. The 
Company’s exposure to market risk for changes in 
interest rate relates primarily to trade and other 
receivables, term deposits and financial loans and 
borrowings. These investments are mainly short 
term in nature and they are not held for speculative 
purposes.

The Company manages interest rate risk by looking 
at the competitive structure of the market to identify 
a proper interest rate policy which is favorable for its 
purposes within its risk management limits.

No analysis on interest sensitivity was performed 
for the fiscal year ended 31 December 2021 as the 
Company’s exposure to interest rate risk is minimal.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value 
or future cash flows of a financial instrument will 
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange 
rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes 

in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the 
Company’s operating activities in which revenue or 
expense is denominated in a different currency from 
the Company’s accounting currency.

Currency structure of assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2021 is as follows:

USD EQUIVALENT
VND 

EUR  EQUIVALENT
VND 

GBP  EQUIVALENT
VND 

TOTAL IN
VND

Assets

Cash at bank 2,350,711 2,854,237 3,589,854 8,794,802

Prepayment for seller 133,123,200 - - 133,123,200

Receivables from operating 3,450,045,981 -   -   3,450,045,981

Other receivable 234,255,627 234,255,627

Total 3,819,775,519 2,854,237 3,589,854 3,826,219,610

Liabilities -   -   -   -   

Total -   -   -   -   

Total currency position 3,819,775,519 2,854,237 3,589,854 3,826,219,610
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Equity price risk

 The Company’s listed and unlisted equity securities are susceptible to market price risk arising from uncertainty 
about future values of the investment securities.

At 31 December 2021, the fair value of listed shares was VND 75,999,718,000. The 10% increase (or decrease) of 
market index would possibly result in a respective increase (or decrease) of the Company’s investment income, 
depending on its magnitude and length as well as the Company’s ownership position of securities which have 
significant influence on market index.

22.2. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer 
contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily 
for trade receivables) and from its financial investing activities, including bank deposits and other financial 
instruments.

Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by the Company 
based on its established policies, procedures and 
controls relating to customer credit risk management. 

Outstanding customer receivables are regularly 
monitored. The requirement for impairment is 

analyzed at each reporting date on an individual 
basis for major clients. At the reporting date, the 
Company’s trade receivables relate to a large number 
of diversified customers and corresponding collateral 
assets.

Bank deposits

The Company's bank balances are mainly maintained with well-known banks in Vietnam. Credit risk 
from balances with banks is managed by Accounting Department and Securities Investment and Analysis 
Department in accordance with the Company’s policy.

22.3 Liquidity risk

The liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will 
encounter difficulty in meeting financial obligation 
due to shortage of funds. The Company’s exposure 
to liquidity risk arises primarily from mismatches of 
maturities of financial assets and liabilities.

The Company monitors its liquidity risk by maintain a 
level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate 
by Management to finance the Company’s operations 
and to mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash 
flows. 

 

Notes to the financial 
statements (continued)

as at 31 December 2021 and for the year then ended

22.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of Company’s liabilities based on contractual undiscounted 
payments:

ON DEMAND UP TO 3 
MONTHS

BETWEEN 
3 - 12
MONTHS

BETWEEN 
1 - 5 
YEARS

TOTAL

As at 31 December 2021

Statutory obligations 1,532,398,047 - - - 1,532,398,047

Payables to employees 15,099,864,644 - - - 15,099,864,644

Other short-term payables 7,107,860,936 - - - 7,107,860,936

Other short-term unrealized revenue 1,453,471,313 - - - 1,453,471,313

Compensation fund for loss to 
investors 40,000,000 - - - 40,000,000

25,233,594,940 - - - 25,233,594,940

As at 31 December 2020

Statutory obligations 1,660,085,415 - - - 1,660,085,415

Payables to employees 4,555,967,128 - - - 4,555,967,128

Other short-term payables 2,157,107,782 - - - 2,157,107,782

Compensation fund for loss to 
investors 20,000,000 - - - 20,000,000

8,393,160,325 - - - 8,393,160,325

Unit: VND
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22.4 Collaterals

The Company did not have short-term loans and borrowings or did not pledge collaterals to secure its loans and 
borrowings as at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020.

23.  Additional information on financial assets and financial liabilities

On 6 November 2009, the Ministry of Finance issued Circular No. 210/2009/TT-BTC providing guidance for 
the adoption in Vietnam of the International Financial Reporting Standards on presentation and disclosures 
of financial instruments (“Circular 210”) which is effective from financial years beginning on or after 1 January 
2011. Circular 210 provides definitions of financial instruments, including financial assets and financial liabilities; 
derivative financial instruments and equity instruments as well as the classification, presentation and disclosures 
of these instruments.

The Circular 210 only regulates the presentation of financial statements and disclosures of financial instruments, 
therefore, the following definitions of financial assets, financial liabilities and other related definitions are applied 
solely for the preparation of this Note. The financial assets and liabilities of the Company are still recognised 
and accounted for in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards and System and accounting policies 
applicable for securities investment fund management companies per Circular No. 125/2011/TT-BTC dated 5 
September 2011 by the Ministry of Finance and comply with the relevant statutory requirements.

Financial assets

The Company’s financial assets within the scope of Circular No. 210/2009/TT-BTC comprise cash, deposits at 
other credit institutions, held for trading securities, other long-term investments, receivables from customers 
and other receivables (excluding advance to customers and advance to employees). Financial assets within the 
scope of Circular 210/2009/TT-BTC are classified, for disclosures in the notes to the financial statements, are 
classified into either of the followings:

1. Financial asset at fair value through profit or loss
Financial asset at fair value through profit and loss is a financial asset that meets either of the following conditions:

a) It is classified as held for trading. A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

 y It is acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near term;

 y There is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

 y It is a derivative (except derivative that is a financial guarantee contract or effective hedging instrument).

b) Upon initial recognition, it is designated by the Company as at fair value through profit or loss.

2. Held-to-maturity investments 

Held to maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with determinable payments and fixed 
maturity that an entity has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity other than:

Notes to the financial 
statements (continued)

as at 31 December 2021 and for the year then ended

a) those that the entity upon initial recognition designates as at fair value through profit or loss;

b) those that the entity designates as available for  sale; and

c) those meet the definition of loans and receivables. 

3. Receivables

Receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in 
an active market other than: 

a) those that the Company intends to sell  immediately or in the near term, which shall be classified as held 
for trading, and those that the entity upon initial recognition designates as at fair value through profit or loss;

b) those that the Company upon initial recognition designates as available for sale; or

c) those for which the holder may not recover substantially all of its initial investment, other than because of 
credit deterioration, which shall be classified as available for sale. 

4. Available-for-sale financial assets: 

Available for sale financial assets are those non-derivative financial assets that are designated as available 
for sale or are not classified as:

a) loans and receivables, 

b) held-to-maturity investments or 

c) financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.
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Financial liabilities

The Company’s financial liabilities within the scope of Circular 210/2009/TT-BTC comprise trade payables and 
other payables.

Within the scope of Circular 210/2009/TT-BTC, financial liabilities, for disclosures in the notes to the financial 
statements, are classified into either of the followings:

1. Financial liability at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liability at fair value through profit and loss is a financial liability that meets either of the following 
conditions:

a) It is classified as held for trading. A financial liability  is classified as held for trading if:

 y it is acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near term;

 y there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

 y it is a derivative (except derivative that is a financial guarantee contract or effective hedging instrument).

b) Upon initial recognition, it is designated by the Company as at fair value through profit or loss.

2. Financial liabilities at amortized cost 

Financial liabilities that are not classified as at fair value through profit or loss are classified as at amortized cost.

Offsetting of financial instruments

]Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet if, and only if, 
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a 
net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Fair value of financial instruments

The Company uses the followings assumptions to determine the fair value: 

1. Fair value of cash and short-term deposits, 
receivables from customers, payables to suppliers 
and other short-term debts approximates their 
carrying value due to their short-term nature.

2. Fair value of receivables is evaluated on the basis 
of market situation and customers’ possibility to 
fulfill their obligation. Based on the valuation, 
the Company estimates the provision for the part 
of receivable which is subject to default risk. As 
at 31 December 2021, book value of receivables 
less provision is not materially different from fair 
value.

3. Fair value of listed securities is determined based 
on quoted prices, if available, on active trading 
market.

4. Fair value of other items is stated as book value 
since available information is insufficient to 
determine the fair value.
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25. Contingent commitments and liabilities

The Company is leasing office under operating lease contract. As at 31 December 2021, the future lease payments 
are presented as follows: 

These payments are determined as at 31 December 2021 based on rental fee stipulated in outstanding contracts 
as at 31 December 2021.

ENDING BALANCE 
VND

BEGINNING BALANCE
VND

To 1 year 2,076,498,060 2,024,880,000

From 1 to 5 years 8,374,816,320 8,099,520,000

Mor than 5 years 14,655,928,560 16,199,040,000

Total 25,107,242,940 26,323,440,000

Notes to the financial 
statements (continued)

as at 31 December 2021 and for the year then ended

26.  Events after the balance sheet date

There is no matter or circumstance that has arisen since the balance sheet date that requires adjustment or disclosure 
in the financial statements of the Company.

Prepared by Approved by Approved by

Ms. Tran Ngoc Mai Ms. Mai Huyen Ngoc Ms. Le Thi Le Hang

Accountant Chief Accountant Chief Executive Officer

Hanoi, Vietnam |  30 March 2022
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